
Trial Transcripts in the

case

United States v. Price et. al.

also known as the

MississippiBurning Trial
1967.

Missing pages in the Transcripts are indicated by
blank pages.\



INDEX TO TRANSCRIPT

VOL.
PreTrialMotions..1111

Hugh S. Ryner .. ...... ...3

OpeningArgumentpl. 36

OpeningArgumentflef. 141

Randolph Percy Russell Dlrect116

Cross Alford50

JarnesW. Awe Direct55

Cross Alford72

Cross Buckley82.

Cross Pigford-90

Charles Johnson Direct94

Cross Weir99
Frances Ruby May Direct 117

ErnestKjrkland .. Direct125

Cross Buekley1142

Cross Weir153

Redlrectl57

Recross Buckley159

Mrs. Nelson Chisoln ...Direct 159

Cross Weir-175

Cross Mcintire179



MrS.MinnieHering.............0....Djrec_83

Cros Weir--198

Redirect 201

Recross Weir203

John Proctor. Direct 210

Cross A1frd-22

Cross Buck1y25
T.Hudsori Direct2149

Cross Weir25
JayCochran .............Direct260

Cross igford3l6

Cross Weir3243

Cross McIntire36

Redirect 367

WilllamDiaond.....
Cross Wer-383

EdwinJ. Ross Djrect389

Cross Weir-391

William P. Featherstone Direct 00

cross Buckley-3

Cross PigfordL2

Cross Weir-43

Redirect 460

Recross Buck1ey-63

-.

.-1



EarlRobertpoe..

Cros CWatkins5O

Cross Alford505

Cross Weir520

Cross Mclntire524

Redirect

Recross Weir528
Vincent V. Coyle .......... Direct 529

Joseph Leo Ghorrnley Direct 532

FrederickA.Cook.. ....Direct535

Rodney Harrison Direct 537

Cross WeirL57

Cross Pigford-578

Cross Buckley579

Carlton Wallace Miller Direct 581

Cross Wtkins_61L

Cross Covington-69

Cross Pigford652

Cross Mclntire-661

Cross Buckley663

Cross Weir680

Redirect 684

Recross Weir69.

Recross Buckley696

RuelMay Direct697

-T



1.

MayCont brossBuc1ey7O8

Cross Weir710

Adele Griffis Direct 717

Cross Weir721

Dan A. Bailey Direct 725

Cross Hendricks-732

Cross Weir736

William

Cross. Alford7143

WilburJones

Harold B. Holley Direct 753

Cross Watkins808

Cross Buckley-87

Cross Weir882

Cross Pigford895

Cross Mclntire903

Redirect 905

Beatrice Cole Direct 908

cross Alford-929

Cross Weir-936

Cross 3ckley943



5--

V0I. II

JamesJordan..... Direct.951

Cross Watkins995

Cross Hendricks1009

Cross Buckley-1016

Cross Weir10l3

Redirect 1107

Recross Hendricks1110

Pet is Dire

WhileD. Dennis ...................Direct1116

Cross Weir-I12

Cross Buckley1130

-Joseph M. Hatcher .-.........Direct 113k

Cross Weir113

Willie D. Dennis Cross Mclntire_11L17

Cross Alford1155

GeorgeA.Berley ...Direct1158

Cross Weir1167

HenryRask Direct1170

Cross Watkins1179

Cross Covington1194

Cross Weir1205

James A. Wooten ...-.Cross Weir12124

Cross Hendrlcks-129



6.-

Henry Ra ic Dire

Cros Covington1279

Cross Watkins-j299

Cross Hendricks13Q

Cross Buckley1306

Cross Alford-1312

Pages 1326.-11199 omitted by
Court Reporter.

.111

RaskCont ..................CrossWeir1500

Plaintiff Rests Case 1510

Motions 51 1521

Carter W. Wa1ters.. .. ..Direct uck1ey1522
Charac. Bowers

-Cross 1525

T. Singletary .. ..... ...... .Direct Mclntire1528
Mt. Zion Church
Station wagon

JackThrash Direct McIntire1537
Coronors Jury

Cross15141

Redirect A1ford154

Henry C. Breazeale Direct McIntire154-
Coroners Jury

Cross



-7-

Fulton Jackson .... Direct McIt1re1550
Coronor

Cross 1553

Redirect Weir1558

Inez Peeples .... ... ... ........Direct Mclntire1565
Charac Willie Dennis

DirectWelr1571.
Alibi Killen

Cross 1573

Redirect Weir-l57l

Catherine Tucker .. .... ... .. .Direet Lewis1575
AlibiTucker

Direct Watkins1579

Cross 1580

Herman Tucker .Direct Lewis1582
Defendant

Cross 1588

HoytR.Stepp....... ......DirectAlford1598
AlibiBurrage

George B. Gestner Direct Watkins1607
Charac T. Barnett

Direct Weir1610

Cross 16i2

FreÆHall .. .. .. .. .Direct Goldrnan1616
Alibi T. Barnett

Cross 1619

Robert Hal. Direct Goldrnanl622
AlibiT. Barnett

Cross 1625

A.R.Denrjjs... ..............DirectWatkjns._1628
Charac T. Barnett.

Cross 1629



8--

Harold Deen ...... Direct Watkns1630
CharacArledge

Cross 1631

Mason Alexander.... ...... Direct Watkins163
Charac Arledge

Cross 1634

Paul Grice 1irect Watkins1636
Charac Arledge

Cross 1637

Weyland McMullan .. ..Direct Goldman-.16112

Alibi Roberts
Cross 16J45

T. H. Singletary Direct Alford1655
.t. Zion Churºh

ClaraHardy.....................DireCtWeir1665
Alibi Killen

Cross 1570

Redirect Weirl675

Ray Killen Direct Weir1677
Alibi Killen

Cross .- 1683

Redirect Weir-1688

Oscar Kenneth Killen Direct Weir-1689
Alibi Killen

Cross 1691

Mrs. Homer Dearing .Direct Weir1G94
Alibi Killen

Cross1697

CurtisHardy. .........c.......DirectWeir..1700

Alibi Killen
Cross 1702

Alfred Keene ... .Direct Hendricks1705
Charac Jordan and
Wallace Miller Direct Buckley17114

Cross 1718

MaxHodgins DirectWeirl7211
Charac nowden

Cross 1726

VV.V._V.._



9--

Jeanette Jordan. .. ... .. ...Direct Weil72
Alibi Arledge

Cross 1730

Redirect Buck1ey--172

Recross 1745

Johnnie Archie ...... .. .. .. ..Direct Watkinsl79
Charac Harris

Cross 1751

Mary Snowden Watkins175
Alibi Snowden

Clarence Austin Harris .. .. .Direct Goldman1759
Alibi Harris

Cross 1760

Raymond Clearrnan ....... ......Direct Watkins1768
Charac Harris

Cross 1769

Virgil Watkins Direct Goldman1777
Charac Harris

Cross 1778

S.E.Welch... ... .DirectWatkiflSl72
CharacL Arledge

Cross 1783

R.E.Johnson..... Direct Watkiris1789
Charac T. Barnett

Mrs. Addie Clark Direct Alfrdl79l
Alibi I3urrage

Cross 1796

Mrs. Ruby Davis Direct Alford1798
Alibi Burrage

Cross 1805

Mrs. Audine Burrage Direct Alford-481l

Alibi Burrage
Cross 1822

Redirect Alford18140

......



10

...DirectWatkins18141
CharacHerndon

Cross 1813

Willie Copeland .. .. .... ..Direct Alford18514
Alibi Burra.ge

Cross 1855

LaceyMurphy.. ...DirectA1ford1859
Alibi Burrage

Cross1860

LeoriMyers... DirectA1ford1863
Alibi Burrage

Cross 1865

WylieAkins. ..........DirectAlford1873
Alibi Burrage
charac Killen Direct Weir1875

Cross 1876

Redirect Alford1887

Waggoner Direct Covington1887
Charac D. Barnett

Cross 1888

Phillip Kircus .... .Direct Covington189l
Charac D. Barnett

Siyder .Direct Covington1893
Charac D. Barnett

.......DirectCovington18914
Charac D. Barnett

Cross 1895

torisEspey..... ..........DirectWatkins1897
Charac Snowden

Cross1898

Lix surge .. Direct Hendrlcks1900
Charac Aiken

Cross 1901

Redirect 1903



-11-

Burnside Direct Pigford1905
Alibi Aiken

Cross 1922

-. Johnny W. Stewart Direct Figfordl93
Charac Wallace
Miller Direct Buckley1937

Cross 1938

Redirect Pigford19149

Recross 1951

Doh1dWi11iamson ......Direct Watins1956
Charac Herndon

Joe Covington ........ ..Direct Hendricks1957
Health Aiken

Joyce Dennis ...Direct Buckley1959
Charac D. Dennis

Cross 1966

Redirect Pigford1968

G. W. Fatty ...Cbarac Direct Pigford1969

J. C. Fowe Direct Buckley1971
Charac Bowers

Cross 1972

Redirect Buckley197

AmieColeman........... ....DirctBuck1ey197
Charac Bowers

Cross 1975

Redirect Buckley1977

Willie E.Lofton.....................DjrectMarsl978
Alibi Sharpe --

Cross1982

Audie Loftôn .. .. .Direct Mars1996
Alibi Sharpe

Cross 1999

S.



Carriei3enton...... .Direct Watkins2003
Alib Herndon

Cross 2007

Aithea Mott Direct Mclntire2009
CIaxac Willie Dennis

Direct Buckley2013

JamesWhittle.......................DireCtMCIfltire2Ol3
Charac Rainey

Cross 2015

Hays Kilpatrick Direct Alford2021
Charac Hop Barnette

Cross 2022

Gene Wilson .Direct Watkins2025
Charac SnowdenV

PrenticeCopeland...... .......DirectWeir2026
Charac Price Rainey

Hop Barnette Cross 2028

Redirect Weir2032

Redirect Mclntire2032

.DirectPigford2033
Charac Aiken

Cross 2035

JoeHodges. ..DirectPigford20210
Charac D. Dennis

Cross 204

T. C. Null Direct Hendricks20117
Charac Aiken

Richard C. Allen Direct AlCord208
Charac Burrage

VJoeMajure ...........DirectNoore2050
Charac Burrage

Cross 2051



13--

Finis McAdory Direct Alford2o53
Alibi Price

Cross 2057

Mrs. Finis McAdory .T. Diiect A1ford2O6
Alibi Price

Cross 2067

Mrs. Dave Watkins ..... .Direct Alford2071
Alibi Price

Cross 2073

Johnny McCraw Direct Weir2076
Charac Killen
Posey Cross 2079

Redirect Weir2086

Recross 2088

Redirect Weir2089

Paul Townsend Direct Mars2089
Alibi Posey

Cross 2092

Lester Rigdon Direct Weir-209
Charac Killen

Cross 2097

Mrs.EbbPosey DirectMars2100
Alibi Posey

Cross 2102

Mrs. Kate Posey Direct Mars2103
Alibi Posºy

Cross 2106

Gerald Branning Direct Moore.2110
Charac Posey
Longdale School Cross 2111
visit

Redirect Weir2118

Recross 2119

Redirect Weir2119



11l_

George W. Herrington ......Direct Weir2120
Charac Killen

Posey Cross 2122

Edward McKeithen Direct Weir2125
Charac Killeri

DirectWeir2127
Charac Killen

Marvin Roebuck Direct Weir2128
Charac.Prjce

Cross 2130

Talmadge Smith .. ... ... Direct Pigford2133
Charac D. Dennis

Direct AJatkjns_2139

Sam Keller Direct Watkins21141
Charac Herndon

RayO.Smith ....... .DirectAlford21142
Charac Sharpe
Burrage Killen Direct Weir21414

Cross 21414

Mrs. Henry Cannon Direct Alford21146
Alibi E.G.

Barnett Cross 21148

HenryCannon ....DirectAlford21149
Alibi E.G.Barnett

Mrs.E.G.Barnett. DirectAlford2152
Alibi E.G.

Barnett Cross 2159

Lynda Barnett Graham Direct Alford-2161
Alibi E.G.Barnett

MikBarriett Direct Alfoid2166
Alibi E.G.Barnett

Cross 2169



15-

TommyBarnett..... ........ .......DirectAlford-2170
Alibi E.G.Barnett

Cross 2172.

Redirect Alford2177

Mrs. Nellie J. Eakes Direct Alford2178
Alibi E.G.Barnett

Cross 2181

Myrtis Lewis ...... .Direct Alford2183
Alibi E.G.Barnett

Code Thompson .... .Direct Alford2185
Alibi E.G.Barnett

Cross 2188

Joe Henry Jarrell .. .Direct Alford2192
Alibi E.G.Barriett

Henry A. ennØdy .Direct Alford2195
Alibi E.G.Barnett

Cross 2197

J. Williams .. .... .1..Direct Alford2200
Alibi E.G.Barnett

Arnold Barrier Direct Moore2202
Charac Sharpe Price

E.GBarnett Direct Weir2203

Direct Alford22014

J.PStokes .. ..DirectMoore22014
Charac Sharpe
Price Rainey Direct Weir2206

Direct Mclntire2207

Cross 2207

JD.Parker IiirectAford2209
Charac E.G. Barnett

J. TBlount .Djrect A1ford-2210
Charac E.G.Barnett

1-.



Arn1d DeWeese ...................... Direct Alford2211
Charac E.G.Barnett

Wallace Cox.......................DirectA1ford2213
Charac E.G.Barnett

C. Savell ... ..... .Direct Alford22JJ1
Charac. EG.Barnett

Cross 2215

Redirect Buckley218

Jeffie Jackson .... Direct Alford2218
Charac E.G.Barnett

CliftonCox............... ...DirectA1rord2219
Charac E.G.Barnett.

Price

J.LBreazeale Direct Weir2221
CharacPrice
Killen

Paul Woods
... .. .. .Direct Weir2223

Charac Price

Rev. Howard Kilpatrick .... .. .. .. .Direct Weir222
Charac Killen

Clifford Breaze1e Direct Moore2226
Charac Willis

Bernard Breazeale ..Direct Moore2227
Charac Willis
Killen Longdale Direct Weir2228
School visit

Cross 2229

Redirect Weir-223

M. L. Graham Direct Buckley-.2236
Charac Bowers

cross 2238

Cliff Chllds Direct Buckley-22O
Charac Bowers



Arthur Carey ...Direct Buckley22142
Charac Bowers

DefendantsRest....... ...225O

I4otions 2252

Sarah LouBarham .......... Direct Watkins2257

Cross.2260

RedirectWatkjns226LI

Additional Testimony for Defendants

Beverly Rawlings .... .. .. ... Direct Buckley2270
Charac Jordan

Cross. 2278

Vernell Amanda Wolff Direct Goldman2284
Alibi Roberts

Cross 2286

DefendantsRest.......... .2289

Rebuttal

William E. Log ..... .Direct 2292
Alibi E.G.Barnett

Cross Weir2303

Cross Watkins23011

Cross Pigford23O1

Cross Weir2305

BothPartiesRest.. ......2311
Motions 1.2312

Closing Argument P1. .2323

Closing Argument Watkins- .....236



18-.

Closing Argument Covington .2388

Closing Argument Pigford ....2395

Closing Argument Hendricks .........2399

Closing Argument Buckley 21402

Closing Argument Weir 21408

Closing Argument Mclntjre 21426

Closing Argument Mars ... .21432

Closing Argument Lewis .. 21439

Closing Argument Moore .214145

Closing Argument Alford 21450

RebuttalArgumØntpl. ....21461

InstructionstoJury.... ....2476

Exceptions 2509

Allen Charge 25314

Exceptions ........ .25149

VOL. IV

Verdict Returned 25147

IIotions .0SS ... .2559

Bond Hearing Price Roberts Bpwer ..2565

Motions 257.5



-19-

Mptions for New Trial. ......... .. .. .2583

Sentencing .. .. .2706

Forma Pauperis Hearing ............272

Wayne Roberts Direct Goldman2732

Cross 2735

Jimmy Arledge Direct oldman276

Cross 279

Jimmy Snoden Direct Goldman2755

Cross 2759

Doyle Barnett Direct. Covington2765

Cross .2771

Cecil Price Direct Weir2776

Cross 2781

Billy W. Posey Direct Weir2786

Cross 2789

.--.



nEFENSE WITNESSES
Charac er

Alibi

Pkin Lix Furge 1900

_B.D.BurnsideAl95
Joe Covingtofl 1957

W. Patty 1969

E. L. Snow 2033

T. Null 2047

jimmy Ar1ede Harold Deen 1630

Paul Grice 1636

Jeanette Jordan 172

E. Welch 17o2

Ethel Barnett Hays Kiapatr1Ck 2021

Prentice Copeland

Mrs. Henry Cannon tA

Henry Cannon
Barnett 2152

Lynda Bernett GraharnA
Mike Barnett 2loo

Tommy Barnett 2170

Mrs. Nellie Eakes A. 21

MyrtiS Lewis 2183

Code Thompson
Joe Henry Jarrell 21

Henry Kennedy 21
3. E. Williams 220u

Arnold Barrier 2202

D. Parker 2209

J. T. Blount 2210

Arnold DeWeeSe 2211

Wallace Cox 2213

3. C. Savell 221

Jeffie Jackson 221

Clifton Cox 2219

Horace Doyle Barnet E.Wagg0fl 1887

3. T. Snyder 1893

J.-R. Shaver 1o9

Gestner 1607
Travis Barnett Georg

Ha1 1616

Robert Hall 1622

Dennis 162

R. E. Johnson cC 1789

..
..



Sam Bowers Carter Walters 1522

Annie Coleman l974

M. L. Graham 2236

ciirr Childs 22110

Arthur Carey 2242

Olen Lovell Burrage Hoyt Stepp 1598

Mrs. Addle Clark 1791

Mrs. Ruby Clark 1798

Mrs. Audine Burrage 1811

Willie Copeland 1854

Lacey Murphy 1859

Leon Myers 1863

Wylie Akins 1873
Richard Allen 2048

Joe Majure 2050

Ray Smith 2142

James Pete Harris Johnnie Archie 17119

Clarence A. Harris 1759

Raymond Clearman 1768

Virgil Watkins 1777

Frank Herndon Ed Wilkins 1841

Donald Williamson 1956

Carrie Bentori 2003

Sam Keller 2141

Edgar Ray Killen Brister 1571
Clara Hardy 1665

Ray Killen 1677

Oscar K. Killen 1689

Mrs. Homer Dearing 1694

Curtis Hardy 1700

Wylie Akins 1873

Johnny McCraw 2076

Lester Rigdori 2095

George W. Herringtofl 2120

Edward McKeithen 2125

J. Q. Joiner 2127

Ray 0. Smith 21112

J. L. Breazea1e. 2221

Rev. Howard Kilpatrick 2224

Bernard Breazeale 2227

Billy Wayne Posey Johnny McCraw 2076

Paul Townsend 2089

Mrs. Ebb Posey 2100

Mrs. Kate Posey 2103

Gerald Branning 2110

George Herrington 2120



Cecil Ray Price Prentice Copeland 2026

Finis McAdory 2053

Mrs. Pinis McAdory 20611

Mrs. Dave Watkins 2071
Marvin Roebuck 2128

Arnold Barrier 2202

J. P. Stokes 22011

Clifton Cox 2219

J. L. Breazeale. 2221

Paul Woods 2223

Lawrence A. Rainey James Whittle 2013
__________________

Prentice Copeland 2026
Stokes 2204

Alton Wayne Roberts Weyland McMullen 16112

Vernel1 Amanda Wolff 22811

Jerry M. Sharpe Willie E. Lofton 1978
Audle Lofton A. 1996

Ray 0. Smith 212
Arnold Barrier 2202

J. P. Stokes 22011

Jimmy Snowden Max Hodgins 17211

Mary Snowden 17511

Doris Espey 1897

Gene Wilson 2025

Herman Tucker Catherine Tucker 1575

Himself 1582

Richard A. Willis Clifford Breazeale 2226

Bernard Breazeale 2227



UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF MISSISSIPPI

EASTERN DIVISION

CRIMINAL ACTION NUM3ER 5291

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA PLAINTIFF

CECIL RAY PRICE BERNARD L. AKIN
___________________

JIMMY ARLEDGE HORACE DOYLE SCTOF S$ISSWP

BARNETTE TRAVIS MARYN BARNETT OLEN LE
LOVELL BURRAGE JAMES T. HARRIS OT 68
FRANK HERNDON EDGAR RAY KILLEN
BILLY WAYNE POSEY LAWRENCE ANDREW ThOMAS CLERK

10 RAINEY ALTON WAYNE ROBERTS JERRY

McGREW SHARPE JIMMY SNOWDEN HERMAN

11 TUCKER RICHARD ANDREW WILLIS ETHEL

GLEN HOP BARNETTE AND SAM HOLLOWAY

12 BOWERS JR. DEFENDANTS

13

14 APPEARANCES

15 MESSRS. ROBERT E. HAUBERG JOHN DOAR and ROBERT OWEN

For the Plaintiff.

17

MESSRS. HERMAN ALFORD WILLIAM M. MARS CLAYTON LEWIS W. D.

MOORE and LAUREL C. WEIR
19

For Defendants Price BurrageKi1.efl Posey Sharpe

20 Willis and Ethel Glen Hop Barnette.

21
MESSRS. THOMAS HENDRICKS JR. and HOWARD PIOFORD

22 For Defendant Aiken.

23
MESSRS. WATKINS and DENNIS GOLDMAN

24 For Defendants Arledge Travis Barnette Harris Herndon

Roberts and Snowden.



HON. BILLY R. COVINCT

For Defendant Horace Doyle Barnette.

HON CLAYTON LEWIS

For Defendant Tucker.

HON. TRAVIS BUCKLEY

For Defendant Bowers.

HON0 JAMES McINTYRE

For Defendant Rainey.

Be it remembered that the above styled ari numbered cause came

10 on for hearing before the HONORABLE WILLIAM HAROLD COX United

ii States District Judge for the Southern District of Mississippi

12 at Meridian Mississippi in the Eastern Division on Monday

13 October 1967 when the following proceedings were had and

14 entered of record

15

16

17

18

19

2U

2H

25



IN CHANBERS ALL ATTORNEYS PRESENT

BY THE COURT

All right let the record show that at the outset

of opening Court we çroceeded in the case to hear

motion of defendant Frank J. Herndon for con-

tinuance on account of his alleged disability to

stand trial.

BY MR WATKINS

Do you want him sworn

10 BY THE COURT

11 Yes sir..

12 HUGH S. RER called as witness for arid on behalf

13 of defendant Frank J. Herdon was sworn and testified

14 as follows

15 BY MR. WATKINS

16 State your name please

17 A. Dr. Hugh S. Ryner

18 Dr. Ryner are you licensed practioner to

19 practice medicine in the State of Mississippi

20 A. Iam

21 Q. And how long have you been practicing sir

22 A. Entirely since 1950.

23 .Q. Will yo. give the Court briefly some of your

24 educational background

25 Well for medical school attended the University



of Mississippi Northwestern University received

my M. D. from Northwestern University interned at

Charity Hospital four years residence and surgery

at Oschner Foundation Hospital.

Q. Dr. at this time to you have an office located

here inLauderdale County

A. IdOe

Q. Where is that office

A. 1216-First Avenue0

10 Q. Are you connected with some of the hospitals here

11
A. lam.

12 Q. Do you specialize do you have speciality are

13 you surgeon

14 A. do general surgery.

15 Q. will ask you if you had occasion to perform an

16 examination or perform surgery on Mr. Frank

17 Herndon

18 A. did.

19 Q. Would you give the Court the date of the performin

20 of this surgery

21 A. 9-29-67.

22 Q. Detail for the court the type of surgery that was

23 pefformed and classify it if it was major or minot

24 t. did hyital hernia repair and divided in-

25 testinal adhesions which was cuased by obstructior



it was major

Now what part of the body was the obstruction

being performed Doctor

A. In the small intestine in the abdomen.

Q. Where is the patient today

A. In Anderson Hospital

Could you tell the Court whether or not the patient

was in intensive care after the hospal

A. The patient was in intensive care for twenty-four

10 hours

ii BY THE CQURT

12 Doctor how long has this patient been under your

13 care and observation prior to this operation

14 BY THE WITNESS

15 Let me straighten this out. have seen him approxi

16 mately year ago and saw him approximately now

17 canrt give you the exact date but it was month ago

18 at Andersons Hospital. He was admitted to Andersons

19 Hospital at that time with acute chest pains burning

20 and he was having acute distress with this hernia at

21 that time Surgery may just go ahead and simplify

22 things

23 BY THE COURT

24 Sure.

25 BY THE WITNESS



Surgery was scheduled at that time however the

patients liver was enlarged and we did liver

test which showed an impaired liver function we

delayed surgery and tried to get the liver back

and at that time told him he should have it

within 30 days we expected the liver to be back

in proper function and whenever we could get him

in.

BY THE COURT

10
Would you classify that operation as an emergency

11
operation

12 BY THE WITNESS

13
would classify it as not an emergency operation

14
but as an urgent operation.

15
BY THE COURT

16
Would you classify it as one that iiequired

17
immediancy

18
BY THE WITNESS

19 would say that had it been an emergency that

care
20

required the same immediate/as an acute appendix

21
or ruptured ulcher would have done it at the

22 first in spite of the liver condition0 It was

23
not that urgent but felt it was much aore

24
urgent that some other things but thought it

25
was urgent and necessary0



BY MR. WATKINS

Doctor hand you an affidavit which was given

on yesterday and ask you if this is your affidavit

A. Yesitis.

Q. Is this your signature

A. This is the wrong date that should be 9-29-

instead of 10-29.

Q. And attached also to the affidavit thereto is.

hand-written medical report

10 A. It is.

11 Q. Is that your handwriting

12 A. That is mine.

13 Your Honor we would like to have the affidavit

14 and handwritten report marked as exhibits if we

15 may.
BY THE COURT

16 A. All right they may be entered and be marked.

17 Whereupon exhibits marked into evidence

18 BY MR0 WATKINS

19 Doctor tell the Court in your professional

20 opinion if you think Frank Herndon would be able

21 to .ttc-d Court

22 He wouldnt be able to come up here and sit up

23 eight hours. Hes only up short time during

24 the day going to and from the bed to the bathroon

25 and maybe walk up and down the hail about twice



aday.

Q. Now describe his condition if you will Docotor

as to where he has clamps on his adoman or

bandages on him and where if you do

A. Well have nominal bandages as he has rather

extensive incision. believe the clips are out

now and he is extended.

Q. Now what type of clothes do you have him in

A. Hes in. pajamas or either one of the hospital

10 nightgowns.

Q. In your opinion is he able to be discharged from

12 the hospital at this time

13 A. No he wont be discharged.

14 Q. In your opinion when do you think he will be

15 discharged

16 A. Well would say from seven to ten days hess

17 still running little fever0

18 BY THE COURT

19 Does he have fever this morning

20 BY THE WITNESS

21 havent seen him this morning Judge Ccx was

22 in the operating room and havent had time to

23 in to see him this morning4

24 BY THE COURT

25 When was the last time you did see him

.. ..--.



BY THE WITNESS

saw him last night he had some fever yesterdayG

BY THE COURT

How much did he have

BY THE WITNESS

Oh think it was ninety-nine something

BY MR. WATKINS

Q. Doctor tdll the Court whether or not you expect

to remove the bandages within the next two or

10 three days

11 A. Normally after week you can remove them but

12 1rent on him but have left it on mainly on

13 security basis. Bandages dont mean anything any

14 more. He does have vascals on the skin which Im

15 going to keep bandaged until they heal up. That

16 resulted from ectensive pulling on the tape and

17 pulling the top layer of the skin up and forming

18 blisters

19 Q. Tell the Court whether or not you are giving this

20
tjtan medication

21 A. am giving him medication.

22 BY THE COURT

23 what 1ind of medication

24 THE WITNESS

25 Hes receivirg medication for pain primarily now he



10

may eventually receive medicadon for kidney

coi1int ich he may develope as they often do

after this type of operation and after they have

bean cathcterized.

BY THE COURT

Does he sleep all right Doctor

BY THE WITNESS

suppose he does it hasnt been a. major complain

BY MR. WATKINS

10
Doyou have any reports of gas condition forming

as result of his operation

12
That is fairly normal thing after surgery.

13
Were you required to put any tubes in his nose

14
and throat

15 No considered it but didnt do it

16 fl Has th nd1tion subsided yet

17
it is going down.

18
Is this the purpose of his going back and forth

19
to the bathroom this gas condition Is that

20
waht requires him to go back and forth

21 Well hes going back and forth to urinate and he

22 having some bowel movements.

23
Tell the Court whether or not in your opinion

24
court trial for period of several days would

25
be in your opinion serious injury to his health

.....



11

A. dOnt believe physically he could tolerate it

for eight hours day hes not up that much and

it Would be considerable strain on anybody for

week or 10 days to go to trial.

Q. If he didnt have nurse in attendance with him

could he attend any other..way

A. This was discussed with me yesterday afternoon.

Q. By whom

A. By some F. B. I. Agents. They asked if he could

10 up on stretcher but rather than come up

11 on stretcher would advise putting hospital

12 bed up it would be more comfortable and he would

13 be able to tolerate it better.

14 Q. Is that in your opinion the only way that it

15 would he advisable at all for him to come to Court

16 A. think that1s the only way that he could physical

17 tolerate it.

18 Q. And in your opinion how often would the Court be

19 disturbed by him going from one place to the other

20 to go to the bathroom

21 A. Possibly four or five times during the day.

22 Q. believe thats all you may cross examine.

23 BY Mi HAUBERG CROSS EXAMINATION

24 Q. Doctor would you say that this medicatioi that

25 you are giving him would bear on his mental con-

-S
_SSSi....

SS
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dition one way or another

A. It could have some.

Q. WaId it have such bearing on his mental condition

that he could not understand the proceedings going

on before him

A. Well cant answer that because havent watche

him after hes had the medication but its possib

But other than year ago your first personal

contact with him was about month ago

10
A. month ago.

11
Q. And at that time did he explain to you that this

12 trial was scheduled to come up

13
A. At that time think it was before the trial was

14 scheduled as far as know did know before the

15
operation the second time it was scheduled

16 had read it in the papers knew nothing about it

17
Q. As matter of fact you did or did not get any

18 information from him that this notice of this

19 trial had gone out

20
A. did not.

21
Q. believe it went out couple of months ago anywa

22 did not.

23 You knew nothing about it7

24
A. knew nothing about0

25
Q. And he said nothing to you about it
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A. He said nothing about it

Q. hen did he say anything to you at all about the

trial

A. It was after we scheduled surgery.

Q. And you scheduled surgery sometimes after the 29th

of September

A. No after the first admission. had him schedule

for surgery at the time he was in the hospital the

first time

10 Q. You still did not discuss anything about his

trial date coming up

12
A. No

13 Q. Did he----

14
A. Let me say this sometimes after we scheduled

15 the last surgery date it was brought up but

16
consider the trial and considered the urgency

17
of his condition before went ahead with it.

18 Q. Would it have been posŁible to have shheduled

19 surgery after the trial was over

20
A. Certainly it was possible to do anything mdica1l

21
most anything but thought it would be the

22
best for the patient had to consider his welfare

23
as well.

24 Q. Well was there any degree of danger

25
A. Yes there is danger from these things.

Witliam A. Davis Officiat Court Reporter Jackson Miss.
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Q. At the time you performed this operation on the

29th of September did you at that time znow

whether he would still be in the hospital

A. knew there was possibility that he would still

be in the hospital.

Q. Was there any discussion had with him about that

A. told him didnt know where he would be able

to attand but felt that he wouldnt be able to

Was any mention made that he would take that up

10
with his attorneys

A. didnt discuss his situation with his attorneys.

12
Q. Now in the event that he should be brought into

13
court in the manner in which you suggest to be

14
on cot

15
A. think he can be brought up in wheelchair and

16
be roved.

17
Q. Well would that put him in such condition that

18
his health would be seriously affected

19
A. dont imagine that it would dont really thir

20
a.t ould.

21
Q. What is your opinion

22
S.Jd dont think it would.

23 Q. Well in your opinion then you believe that he couJ

24
withstand the ordeal of the trial if he was

25 brought here under those conditions arid if he

.1.
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had nurse here to give him his medication

A. Give him his medication as he needed it and allowed

to go to the bathroni.

Q. Would cn have an -pinion how long he could be

in such position after he was brought. in whetheL

it would be few hours or many hours

A. Now in what relation are you referring to in

bed

Q. Assuming that it would be necessary for him to

10 be in court until 1200 oclock and in the afternoo

11 from 130 until 530 or 600 or maybe even 700

12 oclock in the evening

13
A. expect he would do all right in the bed if

14 he was given his medication.

15
Q. Now in the event it became necessary for the

16 Court to go into night sezsicn say after

17 700 oclock in the evening what would be your

18 opinion about this as to his condition

19 A. think that after and this is just an estimate

20 but would say that after being all day and

21 going into night session it would be pretty

22 much of strain on his physical conditiona

23
Q. What type of clothing do you think would be best

24 for him to wear

25
A. believe he could come in his pajamas would be
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all right and bathrobe0

BY THE COURT

How old man is Mr. l4erndon

BY THE WITNESS

Hes in his late forties if recall

BY THE COURT

Is he fairly robust

BY THE WITNESS

Hes been fairly robust. He did have this liver

10 condition which prevented his surgery several month

11 ago and as near as we could do it without

12 taking liver biopsey at that time it looked

13 like nearly sclerosis but during surgery the liver

14 looked real good.

15 BY THE COURT

16 How tall person is he

17 BY THE WITNESS

18 Hes in the neighborhood of six feet

19 BY THE COURT

20 what would ycu say his approximate weight is

21 BY THE WITNESS

22 Id say above 190

23
BY THE COURT

24 Hes fairly large fellow

25 BY THE WITNESS
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Hess fairly good sized fellow.

BY MR. HAUBERG

believe thats all.

BY MR. WATKINS REDIRECT EXAMINATION

Q. Doctor would he need aid in going to and from

the bathroom

A. It would be wise that he have aid to and from

the bathroom.

Q. Would he be in pain and suffer any discomfort

10 A. Just walking to and from the bathroom

11 Q. No all the time he would be in court.

12 A. He might have.

13
Q. Your Honor at this time we offer into eW..dence

14 the exhibits that were marked.

15 BY THE COURT

16 That can be marked as exhibit

17 Whereupon exhibit entered into evidence and marked

18 BY MR. HAUBERG

19 Your Honor have one other question would like

20 to ask the witness.

21 BY THE COURT

22 All right.

23 BY MR. HABBERG

24
Q. Doctor isntt it recommended t1t he walk some

25 A. recommend that he walk some.
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BY THE COURT

Anything further gentlemen

BY MR. HAUBERG

We have nothing else Your Honor.

BY MR. WATKINS

We have nothing. May this witness be excused

BY THE COURT

Yes thank you Doctor

BY MR. WATKINS

10 That concludes our motion Your Hnnor.

ii BY THE COURT

12 Gentlemen dont believe this motion shows this

13 man would run any serious risk of impairment of his

14 health or jeopardy to his life by having him here

15 at the trial0 c.ouldntt help but notice that Counsel

16 asked the doctor that question and the doctor answered

17 something else. dont feel like the facts abd

18 circumstances in this case that it would be oppressive

19 or unfair to this man to require him to attend the

20 trial and he can attend in such attire and with such

21 comfort as he may decide he would like to during

22 the course of the trial and he may absent himself

23 from the courtroom if he wishes to do so but doing

24 so waives his right to the trial and if he does

25 elect to attend he does thereby expressly and irrele
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vantly so waive his right because we are not going to

stop everytime he wants to go to the bathroom.

dont believe this motion is entitled to any other

kind of consideration under the circumstances Ira not

sure this was real emergency operation to start with

becuase the notice of this hearing went out from

the Clerks Office which is matter of Judicial

knowledge the fist of Septrriber 1967 notifying

everybody that the trial of this case would take

10 place at 900 oclock today on the 9th day- of

11
OctDber 1967. dont think the man needs to attend

12
here on stretcher and dont believe he needs

13 wheel chair either we dont need to egerate these

14 ci.rcumstances all out of proportion to the facts

15 think this man can attend the trial and if he needs

16 to leave he will certainly be accorded that right

17 under the circumstances stated and the motion is

18 overruled0

19 Now Mr. WatizI.n will ask you to state what

20 you want to do about his attending the trial.

21
BY MR. WATKINS

22 Your Honor please would likr IO waive IUS

23 presence in the selection of the jury so the Court

24 may proceed while Im gettthg him down here it will

25 take o. good little bit of time to get him here

WUflnr Tk ffirnI Rrôrtr rwksnn. Mjs.
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BY THE COURT

Well want him to be comfortable and if he wants

to excuse himself from the courtroom one of the

Marshals will be instructed to assist him anyway

that is necessary because we want to stact out fair

on this case we are going to continue that way

and were going to stay that way on both sides

all ways through

BY MR. WATKINS

10 Will the Court require him to be fully dressed

11 BY THE COURT

12 No sir if he wants to come in his pajamas or his

13 hospital shirt with bathvobe on thats all right.

14 BY MR. WATKINS

15 If the Court please would like to have him

16 attend the court iithout any aid or any assistance

17 and not in wheel chair or on stretcher if he

18 can.

19 BY THE COURT

20 would think thats right.

21 BY MR. WATKINS

22 Utitjl the time something else develops here until

23 he passed out.

24 BY THE COURT

25 Well dont want him to pass out dont want

WiUlom A. Dovis. Official Court Reporter Jackson Miss.

.-



21

him to be subjected to that much pressure Im

against that.

BY MR. WATKINS

Your Honor will get him here under normal

circumstances as we can

BY THE COURT

Thank you very much.

BY THE COURT

All right Gentlemen well go in the courtroom

10 and start selecting jury.

11 BY MR. WEIR

12 Your Honor please may make one motion into the

13 record here while were in chambers

14 BY THE COURT

15 What kind oi motion

16 BY MR. WEIR

17 Your Honor please wanted to renew motion on

18 behalf of Price Burrage Killen Posey Sharpe

19 Willis and Mr. E. C. Hop Barnett that they be severed

20 from Horace Doyle Barnett and be given separate

21 and different trial from he Horace Doyle Barnett

22 because it is our understanding or informed that it

23 is possibility that some statement or some con-

24 fession has been made by Horace Doyle Barnett that

25 would be undertaken to be introduced in the trial

..
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in this case by the government that only the con-

fession could be used against Horace Doyle Barnett

and not these other defendants whom represent but

still even though know the Court could instruct

them that would still be in their minds that they had

head it and would ask the Court to let us renew

that motIon at this time and give us separate trial

and severance from Horace Doyle Barnett.

BY THE COT

10 Well that motion is assuming lot of things that

cant assume on the contrary assume that the

12 government is familiar with the recent Fifth Circuit

13 Decision on that question. There are some statments

14 and those statements are to be used and you are

15 entitled to them and if you havent been given those

16 havent been informed of it.

17 BY MR. WEIR

18 have been given those and thats the reason know

19 that they will seek to introduce it. do have this

20 statenent Your Honor please or purported statement

21 that has been furnished to us by the United States

22 Government signed by Horace Doyle Barnett or claimed

23 to have been taken from Horace Doyle Barnett. This

24 statement would be greatly prejudicial to our clients

25 if it is permed to be introduced into evidence.
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know when His Honor had this matter up before him

at one time did grant us severance frora Horace

Doyle Barnett on that ground and His Honor knew about

it at that time.

BY MR. HAUBERG

If your Honor please dont believe it was on that

ground at all believe Mr. Weir might have forgotten

that particular motion on the previous indictment.

BY MR. WEIR

10 Perhaps know what it was Judge think you said

11
that you could see where if there was grounds for

12 such statement it might be grounds dont believe

13 you ever got down that far0

14 BY MR HAUBERG

15 belive the reason was Rule 20 Transfer as recal

16 in the original indictment.

17 BY MR0 EIR

18 Well think the Court mentioned it wouldnt be

19 so positive Judge just about what happened about it

20 but know that it was mentioned and remember Your

21 Honor mentioning it.

22 BY THE COURT

23 Well remember one bf these statements under the

24 circumstances wouldnt be admissible but on other

25 circumstances it might very well be admissible.

William A. Davis Official Court Reporter Jackson Miss.__T_
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dont know what the circumstances area wouldnt

just say generally or universially it wasnt admissible

and then again wouldnt say that it was admissible

because that wouldnt the rule

BY MR. WEIR

Your Honor please would want the record to show

that we were diligent in bringing the matter to the

Courtrs attention.

BY THE COURT

10 Well the record may so show0 Werent you heard before

11 Judge Russell on that

12 BY MR. WEIR

13 At that time we asked that each defendant be granted

14 severance from each of the other.

15 BY THE COURT

16 That would be colossal mistake to try conspiracy

17 case and have eighteen different trials.

18 BY MR. WEIR

19 Your Honor please may the record also show that at

20 the time the matters wcre heard before Judge usse1l

21 that id not have this statement that now hold

22 in my hand0 The statement at least two of them pro-

23 duced by the government pursuant to an order isuec1

24 by Jud Rsse11 an is OW that have the

25 statement and we renew our motion.
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BY THE COURT

Well it sounds like something would have done

would have told them if they had such statement

to give it to you if they intended to use it0

dont know of any grounds for continuance that you

might have because readily recognize your rights

to safeguard and think you would have the right

for the Court to state very clearly and implicity

and emphatically to the jury under some circumstances

10 as to other defendants it wouldnt under some

11
circumstances be admissible and to some it would0

12
BY I. WEIR

13 Your Honor please to make sure that the record is

14 fully clear on the matter could you someone uh

15 could we someone let Your Honor be aware what is

io contained in the purported statement The statement

17 of Mr. Horace Doyle Barnett that was furnished to us

18 pursuant to the order.

19 BY IiR COURT

20 think the motion may be little bit untimely.

21 dont know what the circumstances are and dont

22 know what Im being called upon to anticipate or

23 to assume which can1t anticipate or assume at all

24 until the circumstance arises so it would seem to

25 me that your motion is rather untimely so
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BY MR0 WE IR

Your Honor please was just asking that the record

show that we renew motion that has already been made

in view of the fact that we have more information and

grounds now to make the motion on than when it was

first made.

BY THE COURT

This is not motion hearing time this is session

of court and Im not going to take any time out and

10 spend my time on motions. think the record shows

11 and you are certainly diligent and the record may

12 so show and if you want to press for decision Ill

13
give it to you.

14 BY MR0 WEIR

15 Would you grant me just few minutes to confer with

16 Counsel

17 BY MR. PIGFORD

18
Your Honor the defendant Mr. B. L0 Akin joins in

the motion to have Horace Doyle Barnett severed from

20 th rest of the defendants.

21 BY THE COURT

22 Are you getting these varinus Counsel here who they

23 are representing

24 BY THE COURT REPORTER

25 Yes sir
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BY MR. McINTIRE

Your Honor the defendant Sheriff Lawrence Anarew

Rainey joins in the motion0

BY THE COURT

All right. Let the record show diligence on the part

of Counsel.

BY MR. LEWIE

Your Honor my name is Clayton Lewis and would

also like to make the same motion or reiterate it

10
on behalf of Mr0 Herman Tucker one of the defendants.

BY MR0 BUCKLEY

If it please the Court would like also to join in
12

13
the motion on behalf of Mr. Sam Holloway Bowers Jr.

14
BY THE COURT

15
How many defendants will that leave us

16
BY THE COURT

17
Well reaLly this is motion for continuance isnt it

18
BY MR. PIGFORD

19
No sir judge It Your Honor that defendants are

20
making motion that they not be tried with Mr.

21
Horace Doyle Barnett because of this matter which

22 may be introduced into evidence. We want him to be

23
tried separately as see it Your Honor.

24
BY MR. WEIR

25
One other thing if Your Honor please to make the
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record clear would like to make this statement

about this statement that was furnished to us bythe

government dated November 20 1964 marked as an

exhibit not to be placed in the trial but on the

motion only.

BY THE COURT

All right it may be entered and be marked.

Whereupon exhibit entered and marked

BY THE COURT

10 believe Ill leave all of these motions pending

11 to await the developments in the trial of this case

12 and Ill let you call those motions back to my

13 attention at the time you want ruling on them P11

14 give you ruling on it but believe Ill suspend

15 the ruling of them at this time.

16 BY MR. WATKINS

17 Your Honor please Im Mike Watkins and with Dennis

18 Goldman we represent Frank Herndon James Harris

19 Travis Barnett Jimmy Snowden and Alton Wayne Roberts.

20 We have not made any motions at this time making

21
any severance but we would like to reserve any right

22 we would have to make it if that statement is admitted

23 into evidence and at that time we would like to make

24 one at th. ti.

25 BY THE COURT

WIliom A. Davis OffcioI Court Reporter Jackson Miss.
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All right anything else gentlemen

BY MR. WEIR

One other thing Judge jut so the record will show

that we deny that the confession is admissible but

were not sure how the Court will rule on it when

it hears the rest ofthe case.

BY THE COURT

All right. dont want this to be pattern for

this trial gentlemen because we are not going to have

10 big show out of this case dont run court like

11 that. We are going to try this case we are going

12 to stay on it we are going to stick to it and we

13 are going to get rid of it its not going to be

14 interminable so you can just get that out of your

15 minds.

16 BY MR. WATKINS

17 If the Court please while we are all here together

18 would the Court indulge us as to sug
19 selection of the juryas to where the government

20 would strike the people they are going to strike befor

21 we strike or where it is going to be done at the same

22 time.

23 BY THE COURT

24 We are going to do it just like it has always been don

25 In every civil case and in every criminal case there

WilUam A. Dovs Off icia Court Reporter Jackson Miss.
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is no difference. Its the same kind of lawsuits we

have just got more defendants but the only thing we

are going to do little bit differently we have so

many defendants in this case that we are going to

have two alternates and the last four people called

are going to be your four alternates that you will

deal with separately and you will go out there and

therewill be fifty jurors facing the lawyers the

lawyers will stand at the podium and ask any questions

io you want to ask that the ODurt has not alrdy asked.

11 Your clients will be seated against the south wall of

12 the courtroom and you will be seated at Counsel take

13 nearest the south wall we will try to make little

14 bit different arrangement in the courtroom after the

15 jury will be selected and you will have only fourteen

16 jurors and not this fifty then the chairs will be

17 taken out during recess of course the government

18 has to strike first and they will hand you list of

19 strikes and you will hand your list of strikes to

20 the Marshal and the Marshal will ask certain jurors

21 to stand aside thats way that we do it all the time.

22 BY MR. WEIR

23 Your Honor will you grant us conference among

24 the Counsel for the defendants at proper time hefoe

25 we tell who our strikes are
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BY THE COURT

Conference where

BY MR. WEIR

We would like to have it in room so we could all

get in there.

BY THE COURT

You will do that in the courtroorri. just dont want

to have to be sending for lawyers. This case is not

going to get out of hand Im going to. keep it well

10 in hand all the time. You all will have time to

11
confer among yourself with this many lawyers it

12
would seem to rae thac you have spokesman generally

13 for the group.

14 BY MR ALFORD

15 Your Honor please we have about four groups.

16 BY THE COURT

17 And you have twelve lawyers as understand it

18 BY ML ALFORD

19 Yes sir there are four groups of defendants within

20 those twelve lawyers. The first time these strikes

21 are presented to us if we could have short con-

22 Lerence then think we could do the rest of it

23 around counsel table if we could Your Honor please.

24 BY THE COURT

25 Well its not going to be but one time that know
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anything about.

ALFORD

Well probably misunderstood to start with. There

are fifty jurors to start with

BY THE COURT

That includes your four alternates.

BY MR. ALFORD

We you have several defendants withseveral lawyers

representing several defendants and we need to get

10 our heads together and we want to assure the Court

11
that we want to move just as gast as the Court does.

12 BY THE COURT

13 Well we are not going to move so fast and dont

14 want to give that impression that we are in such

15 big hurry that we would hurt anybodys rights but

16 dont see any necessity for whole lot of conferenc

17 about something like this that you cant conduct in

18
the courtroom.

19 BY MR. ALFORD

20 Well wetve got big group of defendants and big

21 group of lawyers and we would like to have permission

22 to withdraw at least ten minutes after we get the

23 governments strikes.

24 BY THE COURT

25 Well dont see the advantage of thatQ

William A. Davis Official Court Reporter Jackson Miss
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BY MR0 WEIR

Your Honor please theyll have to tell us

which ones they are going to excuse first0

BY THE COURT

Thats the way it has always been done. All right

gentlemen well move on in to the Courtrhoom in

ten minutes.

Whereupon the Court took ten minutes recess

from Motions in Chambers

10 IN COURTROOM ALL ATTORNEYS AND DEFENDANTS PRESENTO

11 BY THE CLERK

12 Criminal Action number 5291 United States of America

13 versus Cecil Ray Price Lawrence Andrew Rainey

14 Jimmy Arledge Horace Doyle Barnett Travis Barriett

15 Olen Lavell Burrage James Harris Frank J.

16 Herndon Edgar Ray Killen Billy Wayne Posey B. L0

17 Akin Alton Wayne Roberts Jerry McGrew Sharpe Jimmy

18 Snowden Herman Tucker Richard Andrew Willis E. C.

19 Hop Barnett and Sam Holloway Bowers Jr.

20 BY THE COURT

21 what says the Government

22 BY UR. HAUBERG

23 The government is ready Your Honor

24 BY THE COURT

25 hat says the defendants
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BY MR. ALFORD

.1 fay it please the Court defendant Price is ready.

BY MR. PIGFORD

Defendant B. L. Akin is ready Your Honor.

BY MR0 McINTIRE

Defendant Sheriff Lawrence Andrew Rainey is ready

Your Honor.

BY N. LEWIS

Defendant Herman Tucker is rdady.

10 BY MR. COVINGTON

11 Dendant Horace Doyle Barnett is ready.

12 BY MR. WEIR

13
May it please the Court defendants Price Willis

14 Reverend Edgar Ray Killen Billy Wayne Posey Jerry

15 McGrew Sharpe Olen Lavell Burrae are ready Your

16 Honor AND E. G. Hop Barnett and Jimmy Arledge.

17 BY MR. WATKINS

18 Defendants Travis Barnett Alton Wayne Roberts

19 Jimmy Snowden and Frank J. Herndon are ready Your

20 Honor and James T. Harris is ready.

21 BY MR. BUCKLEY

22 May it please the Court defendant Sam Holloway

23 Boe-rs Jr. is ready.

24 BY THE COURT

25 All right. he lieve thats all the defendants.
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Fifty Jurors placed in box were selected and

accepted by all parties.

BY THE MARSHAL

Jurors not in the box and not in the trial of this

case now stand finally discharged.

BY THE COURT

Members of the Jury am not going to keep this jury

together during the trial of thIs case as. long as

10

Im convinced you are complying with the request the

Court is going to make of you that Is that you not

12

talk to anybody talk to nobody and let nobody talk

13
to you or in your presence or in your hearing about

14
this case and with that understanding am going to

15
release you for lunch with this understanding and Im

16
going to stress this again upon you because of the

17
iraortance of this case. If get even an impression

18

that you are not doing this what the Court is re

19
questing of you to do then Im going to keep you

20
together. will leave to your own good judgment what

21

is proper or improper influence but just dont let it

22
come to my attention do have your promise on this

23
All jurors answered yes to the poll of the Court.

Well take recess on that. Let the jurors pass out
24

first.
25

WHEREUPONORSEXCUSEDORLIJNCH
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iereupOfl Court took recess at 220 until 330

P. for lunch

AFTER NOON RECESS

BY THE COURT

The government may make any statement they wish

and at the conclusion of their statement the defen

dants may make any statement of the case they may

care to make. If you dont care to make statement

thats all right.

10 BY MR. DOAR

ii If It please the Court Members of the Jury

12 as Mr. Hauberg told you my name is John Doar and

together with Mr. Hauberg and Robert Owen we will

14 be presenting this case to you and to the Court for

the next few days.

16 On the 27th day of February 1967 Federal

17 Grand Jury for the Southern District of Mississippi

is returned an indictment against nineteen defendants

19 eighteen of whom are before you today before the

20 Court today. Chang them with conspiring together

21 to interfer and injure Nichael Sc.hwerner James

22 Chaney and Andrew Goodman in the exercise of their

23 constitutional right not to be deprived of their

24 rights without due process of law by persons acting

25 under the color of law.



Briefly the ovidence that we will be presenting

to you here in the next few days will show that in

early 1964 Michael Schwerner white man thini

21 or 22 years old civil rights organizer with an

organization known as CORE canie to Mississippi to work

with another organization called COFo to encourage

negro citizens of Mississippi to exercise their civil

rights. He worked in Meridian Mississippi and in

the surronding counties during the winter and sprng

10
and early summer of 1964. Among the places that he

11
worked encouraging the negroes of their civil rights

12
was in Neshoba County. There is small negro

13
community eight or nine miles east of Philadelphia

14
called Mt. Zion community and in early June of that

15 year he went along with a. negro boy named James

16
Chaney in the process of having meetings and meeting

17
With people in their homes urged these people to

18
register to vote and to have freedorae schools and to

19
exercise their civil rights in other ways. During

20
the time these young men were in Neshoba County froiii

21
time to time their actions were chec1ed on by the

22
Sheriffs Office of Noshoba County which the Sheriff

23
was Lawrence Rainey and his Deputy was Cecil Price.

24
On the 16th of June the Mt0 Zion Church was

25
burned and on the 21st diy of June Michael Sch7rnCI

William A. Dava Official Court Reporter jackson Miss.



James Chaney and another young man Andrew Goodman

from the North went to the Mt. zion Church in the

early aftenocm to investigate that matter. They

were there as the evidence will show for aPproxirflatN

an hour and then in their station wagon blue

station wagon they start to return toward Meridian

in order to get back from Meridian from the Mt. Zion

cóthaunity it was necessary for them to travel through

thØ City of Philadelphia. At the outskirts of the

10 City of Philadelphia at about 300 oclock in the

11 afternoon tos tIc -.ore rec by Cci1

12 Price and they were placed in the Neshoba County

13 Jail on the afternoon of that day. They mained in

14 the jail of Neshoba County until about 1030 that

15 night hen they were released from jail by Deput

16 Sheiff Cecil Price. They started south on highway

17 19 toward Meridian and that was the last they were

18 heard from Two days later their station wagon was

19 found some 15 miles northeast of Neshoba County

20 1-thildeiphia in Neshoba County completely burned.

21 Thereafter the Federal and Sta authorities made

22 extensive search to find out the location of these

23 three boys and finally on August 1964 their

24 bodies were found buried fifteen feet in dam about

25 six or seven miis southwest of Philadelphia Miss.
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After their bodies were found there was very

extensive investigation by the Federal Bureau of

Investigation to solve this case and he evidence of

facts with respect to this case we will be presenting

to you in the next few days. want to say to you

in the solving of this case the Federal Bureau of

Investigation had to pay money for information leading

to the solution of this case. Witnesses will testify

.9 ..
here who have been paid for informati6n they have

10 furnished. Briefly the evidence will show that there

11 was Klan group in the State of Mississippi known

12 as the 4hite Knights of the Ku Klux Klan headed by

13 one man by the name of Sara Bowers one. of the de

14 fendants and he together with the other defendants

15 present in this group agreed together plotted to-

16 gether to take Michael Schwerners life and the

17 lives of these other boys because they didnt like

18 what these boys stood for The facts will show that

19 the boys were in custody on the 21st day of June

20 some of the defendants called out other Klan members

21 that they had been taken into custody and thereafter

22 other Klan members assembled from Meridian came to

23 Phildelphia Neshoba County and waited until the

24 appointed hour that they were released from custod

from custody they were



chased by three cars one of which was driven by

Cecil Price Deputy Sheriff in an official state

law car and as they got about 15 or 16 miles south

of Philadelphia they were stopped on sideroad

and again placed in custody by Cecil Price who was

accompanied by some of the other defendants. Some of

the other defendants were in the back of their car

they were not all present. They were taken back

in.Cecil Prices car four or five miles back up

10
toward PhilÆelphia in Neshoba County the Deputy

11
Sheriff turned off on side road stopped his car

12
the boys were taken out the car and shot and

13 killed at close contact range. They then were

14 loaded back in the station wagon their bodies taken

15 over and put into the base of the nearly newly

16 formed not completed darn that was being constructed

17 on the farm of Olen Burrage and then bulldozer

18 covered their bodies over and the dam was completed

19 and as said before their bodies rested fifteen

20 or more feet below the top of the data. That Ladies

21 and Gentlemen is very briefly the evidence that we

22 will present to you and we think that this evidence

23 will support the charge in the indictment that was

24 returned by the Grand Jury in the Southern District

25 of iiississippi
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BY THE COURT

Does any Of you have any different statement to make

or do you want to make statement Ill let any one

of you or each of you make statement.

BY MR. WEIR

Your Honor would like to make brief statement in

behalf of Mr. Price Mr. Burrage Reverend Killen

Mr. Posey Mr. Shappe Mr. Willis and Mr. E. G.

Hop Barriett.

10 BY THE COURT

11 You may come forward.

12 BY MR. WEIR

13 Ill cor fcrward. May it please Your Honor and

14 Ladies and Gentlemen of the Jury on the behalf of

15 these defenda we contsnd that the distinguished

16 gentlemen from Washington can not prove the aliega

17 tions he alleges bos this jury and say that

18 our clients are completely guilty and they can not

19 be proven guilty. That we will bring forward whateve

20 evidence we deem best and it is their reeponsibilit

21 to prove in fact that cur clients are guilty and

22 It is our responsibility to bring you evidence to

23 show that our c1ierts are in fact innocent at the

24 proper time Thank you.

25 BY MRe IGFORD
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Your oflor would like to make very brief state

ment.

BY THE COURT

Al. right.

BY MR. PIGFORD

Members of the Jury in behalf of the defendant

Mr. B. L. Akin our contention tha he had nothing

whatsoever to do with it that he didnt know anything

about any of the events which the government has said.

10 they intend to prove in this case that he is not

11 guilty of any conspiracy.

12 BY MR0 WATKINS

13
May it please the Court Members of the Jury

Im Mike Watkins and my associate Mr. Dennis

15 Goldman speaking for Frank J1 Herndon Jimmy Arledge

16 James T. Harris Travis M. Barnett Jimrtiy Snowdcn

and Alton Wayne Roberts respectfully answer the

18
charges of the government that our clients are not

19
guilty of the charge of conspiracy.

20 BY MR0 COVINGTON

21
May it please the Court Members of the Jury

22
represent H3race Doyle Barnett he has pled not

23
guilty to the charges and that is our position. Thanl

24
you.

BY MR. BUCKLEY



May it please the Court Members of the Jury

am Travis Buckley and represent Mr. Bowers and

of course our contention is that Mr. Bowers has

been innocently charged with the charges that have

been lodged against him and as to the remarks made

by Mr. Doar think if he expects to prove that he

is rather ambitious and dont expect him to be able

to so prove in fact it is our intention and it is

our expectations to show that his testimony has been

10
gained or his evidence has been gained through the

use of coercion offer of reward and bribery and we

12
believe that we can show you in the cours.e of this

13 trial that he has the poorest in character that is

14 possible that will be brought before this or any

15
other court to testify against these people here.

16
Thank TOU.

17
BY MR. McINTIRE

18
Your Honor may it please the Court Members of

19
the Jury. Im James Mclntire and represent the

20 defendant Lawrence Andrew Rainey Sheriff of Nes.hoba

21 County. Sheriff Lawrence Andrew Rainey has pleaded

22 innocent to these charges and he is by the testimony

23
will ShOW his innocence. The burden of proof is on

24
the federal government to prove that Sheriff Lawrence

25 Andrew Rainey entered into conspiracyc Sheriff
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Sheriff Lawrence Andrew Rainey will prove to you

that he knew nothing about any alleged crime by the

federal government. The testimony will bear this out

and feel confident that you will take into consider-

ation the weight of the testimony.

BY MR. LEWIS

May it please Your Honor. Gentlemen off the Jury.

Ladies and Gentlemen of the Jury excuse me want

to say that on behalf of Herrran Tucker one ofthe

10 defendants in this cause that am representing and

we shall endeavor with equal regularity when it comes

12 out time to show by permissible evidence that he is

13 not guilty of the accusations of the charge here

14 as set out by Mr. Doar. Thank you.

15 BY THE COURT

16 Does aiybody else have anything to say Is the

17 rule invoked gentlemen on either side

18 BY MR. BUCKLEY

19 The defendants would ask that it be invoked if Your

20 Honor please.

21 BY THE COURT

22 All right the rule is invoked.

23 BY THE MARSHAL

24 All witnesses that plan to testify in this case

25 follow me.



whereupon Rule Invoked

BY MR. ALFORD

If Your Honor please need to ask the Court

question. As to character witnesses is the rule

invoked as to them also

BY ThE COURT

Oh yes. All witnesses follow the. Marshal and he will

show you where to go depending which side you are

testifying for Now am going to leave it to

10 Counsel to look out for your witnesses because

11 dont know who your witnesses are. The witnesses

12 are being warned and Counsel are warned right now

13 if the rule is invoked and witness sits in here

14 and listens to part of this testimony Im not going

15 to let him testify. So watch out for you.r witnesses

16 and see that they are not in here.

17 BY MR. ON
18 If the Court please there might arise the occasion

19 that illhave to have soie of te Office

20 tii ur would the rule apply to them

21 also

22 BY THE COURT

23 what officers

24 BY MR. OWEN

25 Some of te Deputy Marshals maybe just one.



BY THE COURT

Well believe we have enough Marshals on the

premises to swap them for some on the outside and

they them work on the outside because the rule

should apply to everybody. Dan get me two Marshals

from the outside and you two can work outside.

BY THE MARSHAL

Were sending for T. now.

BY THE COURT

10 All right0 Were getting off to slow start

11 here so dont think well have another break until

12 600 oclock. Thats when we will quit for the day

13 so if any of you need to make some arrangements do

14 it now. You may call your first witness.

15 BY MR. DOAR

16 Well take Mr. Russell.

17 BY THE COURT

18 Before we get started believe will ask the

19 government to give the Marshal list of his witnesses

20 so they will be quickly available to us and we wont

21 have any delay.

22 RANDOLPH PERCY RUSSELJ called as witness for and

23 on behalf of plaintiff was sworn and testified as

24 follows

25 DIRECT EXANATIQi
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BY MR. DOAR

Will you tell the Court and Jury your full name

A. Randolph Percy Russell.

What is your occupation

A. am managing engineer with the Mississippi State

Highway Department.

Q\. Did you at my request bring. certain official

maps of the State of Mississippi wi1 yóü today

A. Idid.

10
Do you have those maps with you

11
A. Idosir.

12
And wonder if you can take those out of your

13 briefcase so I.might can ask you several questions

14 about them. Do you have 1964 map of Ne8hoba

15 County

16 A. Yes sirQ

17 Do you have 1961 map of Lauderdale County

18 A. Yes sir.

19 Do you have 1963 map of Newton County

20 A. Ido.

21
Do you have there 1964 map of Kemper County

22 A. Yes sir.

23
Do you have 1963 map of Meridian Mississippi

24 A. Yes sirQ

25 And do you have 1964 Im sorry 1963 map of

.. -.



Philadelphia

A. Yessir.

And do you have an official map of the State of

Mississippi

A. Yes sir.

Q. And are all of these maps accurate portrayals of

the territory they attempt to portray

A. Yessir.

Q. And do those maps carry the certification of the

10 engineering department of the State Highway

ii Department

12 A. By the Secretary of the State Highway Commission.

13 Your Honor would like to ask that these maps

14 be marked and offered into evidence.

15 BY MR. WEIR

16 If it please Your Honor we object because they

17 havent been properly identified or qualified.

18 BY THE COURT

19 Let me just ask you this so we wont just spin

20 our wheels and start fighting feathers in big

21 room. Do you know of anything wrong with anyone of

22 those maps

23. BY MR. WEIR

24 Your Honor please we havent even seen the maps.

25 BY THE COURT

-. --.I C.4 Pnnrtr Is-.kson. Miss.
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Well show them those maps because we are not

going to spend lot of time seeing if something

is wrong with those maps0 Look at them and if you

have anything to say about them Im listening Mr0

Doar are they certified

BY MR. DOAR

Yes Your Honor.

BY THE COURT

.9
.. They ma be entered- into evidence and marked

10 serially and Ill give Counsel an opportunity to

11 look at them and if you find anything wrong with

12 them well hear about it later

13 Whereupon exhibits entered into evidenc and

14 marked P-i through P-7
-.

15 BY MR. DOAR

16 Those are all the questions we have of this

17 witness Your Honor.

18 BY THE COURT

19 All right. Do you have any questions

20 BY MR. ALFORD

21 We dont know we havent studied these maps0

22 BY THE COURT

23 Counsel they are certified. We just dont

24 waste time going over maps that are certified.

25 BY MR. BUCKLEY
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May it please the Court without studying these

maps but just glancing over them we would object

because we dont see where they have any relevancy.

BY THE COURT

Ill let you have that objection they are certi

fied maps Counsel and you may question the witness

about it.

BY MR. WEIR

have no questions myselfYour Honor.

10 CROSS EXAMINATION

11 BY MR0 ALFORD

12 Mr. Russell did you prepare these maps

13
A. Yes sir supervised the drafting room.

14 direct your attention to exhibit P-3 which

15 purports to be map of the City of Philadelphia

16 Mississippi and ask you if you of your own

17 personal knowledge prepared this

18 No sir.

19
Q. Did you know what the corporate boundaries were

20 in the City of Philadelphia Mississippi in 1963

21 A. wasnt with the Highway Department in 1963.

22
Q. Therefore you have no personal knowledge of the

23 correctness of the laying of the ground at that

24 time do you your own personal knowledge

25
A. No more than what the map indicates itself.

-........



Q. So as to the authenticity of this map you have

no knowledge of it do you sir

A.. None other than the descriptions that we have

filed in my office.

Your Honor please we move to exclude this map

this exhibit4

BY THE COURT

What is that P3

BY MR. ALFORD

Yes sir0

BY THE COURT

12
Overruled. That map is certified by the custodian

13
down there and thismans knowledge of it is not

14
material overruled.

15
BY ML ALFORD

16
Do you know anything about the location of the

17
streets whether or not they are accurate on this

18
map

19
A. They are accurate according to theinformation

20
on file in my office.

21
Q. Of your own personal knowledge do you know that

22
to be fact

23
A. Yes sir.

24
Q. Are all the streets of Philadelphia shown on this

25
map



A. Give me your question again.

Q. Are all of the streets of Philadelphia within this

corporate limit shown on this map

A. Not necessarily.

Q. Then its not complete and accurate description

of the City of Philadelphia then is it

A. The map is complete and accurate description of

Philadelphia for the purpose in which it was

drawn.

10 Q. But Im asking you the questionthough Mr.

11 Russell about this map. being complete and accurate

12 and showing all the streets in the corporate

13 limits in the City of Philadelphia does it or

14 does it not

15
A. think the answer gave you would have to stand

16 Would you answer my question please sir

17
A. Not necessarily all of the streets.

18 Im talking about in 19637

19
A. According to the information was asked to make

20 the map yes sir.

21 That is not the answer to my question does it or

22 does it not

23 A. Does it or does it not what

24
Q. As said before does it show all the streets in

25 the corporate limits of the City of Philadelphia

Williom A. boyis Official Court Reporter Jackson Miss.



A. Within the limits given there yes sir.

What do you mean by the limits given there Mr.

Russell

A. didnt say limits given there said within

the limits of hnmn error0

What do you mean by human errors

.7 A. Well think the attorneys and the Courtknows

that there are human errors in everything.

Well is it or not true portrayal of all the

10 streets

11 A. Within the limits of human error yes sir.

12 If it please the Court we move again to renew

13 our objection.

14 BY THE COURT

15 Is this the same exhibit

16 BY MR. ALFORD

Yes sir.

18 BY THE COURT

19 Overruled.

20 BY MR. ALFORD

21
Q. Mr. Russell with reference to --

22 BY THE COURT

23 Gentlemen would like to say this for the record

24 and for the benefit of Counsel for the future obser

25 vation about those maps are certified to as being



cz
accurate by the lawful custodian of those maps

and unless and until they are shown by some

evidence to be inaccurate they are presumed

accurate and this Court does so presume.

BY MR. ALFORD

Your Honor please the position that we take is

that witness should properly testify andtestlfy

as to what it purports.

BY THE COURT

10 dont think he had to come here at all think

11 he could have just sent them here. They are

certified and they would be admissible in evidence

13 don think his testimony has added thing to

14 this record. The accuracy and competency is by

15 reason of the certification on them.

16 BY MR. ALFORD

17 This map of Neshoba County of 1964 was it made

18 under your supervision

19 A. It was not.

20 Q. This other map of 1960

A. It was not0

22 This map made of Newton county bearing the date

23 of 1960 was it made under your supervision

24 A. Youre reading the wrong date sir. The date of

25 the map was 1963.

..



This map of 1964

A. It was not.

And Lauderdale made in 1961 was it made under youi

supervision

A. It was not.

This map of the State of Mississippi which is

exhibit P-7 was it made under your Supervision

A. It was sir.

Is it an accurate portrayal of all of the roads

10 and highways in the State of Mississippi

11 A. It is accurate and portrays all of the highways

12 and roads maintained by the State Highway system.

13
Q. Your Honor please we respectfully object to the

14 introduction of all of these maps at this time0

15 BY THE COURT

16 Overruled0

17 BY MR. ALFORD

18 Thats all.

19 Shereupon witness excused

20 JAMES W. AW called as witness for and on behalf

21 of Plaintiff was sworn and testified as follows

22 DIRECT EXAMINATION

23 BY MR. DOAR

24 Would you state your name please

25 James Awe.

.-



What is your occupation

A. am Special Agent with the Federal Bureau of

Investigation.

Q. Where do you work

A. Jackson Mississippi.

How long have you worked with the F. B.

A. Since 1958 as Special Agent thats little

ovàr nine years.

Have you had any experience of making charts or

10 scales of various areas

A. Yes have had expeence making scale drawings

12 am police school instructor and among the

13 subjects that do teach are sketching crime scene

14 areas and through the course of many investigatiot

15 have prepared many scale drawings.

16 Did you make small drawing of some of the roads

17 and highways of Neshoba County from an official

18 state map highway map of Neshoba County

19 BY MR3 BUCKLEY

20 Your Honor please if it please the Court ob

21 ject to the form of question. Hes leading the

22 witness.

23 BY THE COUT

24 Overruled.

25 BY MR. DOAR



5d7

Do you have that sketch with you

A. Yes do

wonder if you couid open it up and identify it

please

A. This is the sketch or drawing that made of

section of Neshoba County.

q. When you say section of Neshoba County what do

you mean

A. It represents only part of the county there is

10 section here that is omitted section that

ii represents approximately 4.7 miles to include

12 pertinent area of the county and this is the

13 way that it was done and in the lower right

14 hand corner it shows section of Mississippi

15 showing Newton Lauderdale and Neshoba Counties

16 on the right side and the area that is in white

17 represents the area that is shown on the larger

18 diagram.

19 And that was just trace from the official map

20 of Neshoba County

21 A. Yes sir.

22 BY MR. PIGEORD

23 We object to his leading Your Honor.

24 BY THE COURT

25 Yes sustain your objection.



How was that done

A. obtained the map from the Highway Department

and scaled one inch and from that made this

actually traced thtt from that map.

would like to offer this into evidence.

BY THE COURT

Show it to opposing Counsel.

BY MR. ALFORD

If it please the Court we object to the introduction

10 of this drawing and from its own admission from the

11 witness it is not scaled and an area in Neshoba County

12 is left blank here it is surely out of proportion

13
and we respectfully object to it0

14
BY MR. DOAR

15
Would you explain the grey area on the 9p be-

16
tween the two dotted lines where the yellow area

17
is marked the City of Philadelphia

18
Yes0 First would like to state this is scale

19
drawing of inch equals mile and this area

20
that you see on the lower left hand corner re

21
presents the entire county of Neshoba County.

22
The grey area surronding is omitted in this map

23
as well as an area through the center approt matel

24 4.7 miles which is indicated by this large grey

25
area but the whole county is represented down
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here in the lower left hand corner. Now for

example highway 21 you sea here extends up to

this point highway 21 then continues to

point up here but if you move down to this

lower section youwill see where Highway 21 goes

through that entire area so there will be no mis-

presentation.

BY MR. ALFORD

Your Honor please that would still be the conclusion

10 of the witness we object0

11 BY THE COURT

12 Well believe he is entitledto portray his

13 viewpoints and project them as he wish so long

as it is not misleading and dont believe

that4s isleading Ill overrule your objection

16 and let it be entered and be marked

17 Whereupon exhibit entered into evidence and

18 marked P-8

19 BY THE COURT

20 All right you may proceed.

21 BY MR. DOAR

22 Now Mr0 Awe dd you make larger scale drawing

23 of Neshoba County similar to the small drawging

24 that Is marked as exhibit 87

25 A. Yes prepared large scale drawing of the

Wilhom Davis Officia Court Reporter Jackson Miss.
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same area of Neshoba County.

Do you have that map or that drawing with you

today

A. Yes Ido.

How was that drawing prepared

A. In preparing this drawing first obtained the

maps from the highway department county map of

Neshoba County studied this map IÆlso had avail-

able an aerial photograph of Neshoba County

10 studied this in detail and compared the various

11 roads on the aerial photograph with the roads on

12 the official highway map. also travelled throu

13 various areas in Neshoba County and made notes

14 as travelled through there taking speedometers

15 readings from the car then went back and pre

16 pared or compared those with the scale on the

17 aerial photograph and also on the highway maps

18 then after that made map by tracing the roads

19 that appeared on the aerial photograph.

20 Q. Now does the large drawing or map contain the

21 same scheme of roads and cities as appears on the

22 small map

23 A.. Yes

24 BY MR0 PIGFORD

25 Object Your Honor he1s leading Your Honor.



BY THE COURT

Yes you may rephrase your question.

BY MR. DOAR

Can you compare whats on the large map with the

lines and markings on the small map

A. Yes. The roads contained on the small map are

exactly the same that are contained on the larger

map that prepared.

Q. would like to ask that tFe large mapbe marked

10 and offered into evidence.

11 BY THE COURT

12 Show it to Counsel.

13 BY MR. ALFORD

14 We object to this map being offered Your Honor with

15 the similar objection to the other the reason being

16 it doesnt show completely Neshoba County in that

17 there is blanked out area there that would be

18 wholly misleading to any individual and have no

19 indication as to who prepared it. There is missing

20 here about four and half miles that would be mis-

21 leading to anyone with four and half miles differen

22 there with is blanked out and its not proven to be

23 accurate some of the roads are missing especially

24 this blanked out area if Your Honor please.

25 BY MR. PICFORD



12

Your Honor may make an objection on behalf of

my client We object to the introduction of this

map which is now spread out on the floor as being

irrelevant and immaterial to the case and its

accumulative and we object to it being introduced

for those reasons.

BY THE COURT

Well to answer your question

it is accumulative or not it may be and it may

10 not be.

11 BY MR0 PIGFORD

12 As understood the witness to say the same ro4.

13 that are on the smaller map and that is already

14 in evidence.

BY THE COURT

16 Well it looks to me like the principal objection

is the criticism of its value and that would seem

18 to go to the weight of the evidence and Ill let

19
you dlelop that on cross examination Ill

20 overrule both of your objections.

21 MR. BUCKLEY

22 Your Honor please to keep me from making an

23 objection everytime would join in their objecti

24 BY THE COURT

25 All right think we may as well make this ground
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rule right now that at any tima any one of these

lawyers for the defendants makes an objection

that that objection and the ruling on it shall

apply to all benefits of all other attorneys unles

some lawyer immediately rises and disassociate

himself from that ruling.

CROSS EXAMINATION

BY MR. ALFORD

Mr. Awe do you tell this Court that the curves

10 in these roads southwest of Deemer Mississippi

11 are as they appear on the ground

12 Yes sir this is fair representation as they

13 appear.

14 And you do admit that that blanked out area

15 is approximately four and half miles of this

16 county do you not

17 would not say that there was distortion on

18 that area that is omitted because if you will

19 refer to the section on the lower lett hand corner

20 on the map that shows the section of Neshoba

21 County in its entirity and the roads example

22 take Highway 21 arid notice here white section

23 and Highway 21 picks up again over here and if

24 you refer to the section down there that same

25 grey area you can see the continuation of Highwa

-.-.. .. -.
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21.

BY MR. ALFORD

Your Honor please would like for this witness

to answer my question and then he can explain.

BY THE COURT

think it might be helpful to all of us if you

would tell us what part is omitted becaue sitting

here and listening and trying to fjndout dont

know what part you are saying he left out

10 BY MR. ALFORD

11 What part of Neshoba County did you leave out

12 A. The section of approximately 4.7 miles which

13 is directly north of the city limits of

14 Philadelphia.

15 In other words the entire area of this map

16 east and west is not part of the township

17 but is almost full township in length north

18 and south is that correct

19 A. There is an entire section that is omitted

20 across here that is right.

21 And therefore this map that is supposed to be

22 an accurate drawing of Neshoba County section

23 is left out isnt that true Mr. Awe

24 A. I-
25 Just answer my question you did leave that
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out didnt you

That was left out.

Q. And if person wanted to know what happened in

that area or see the roads in that area you would

have to look at much smaller scaled map and

read a. directive that you would give at the time

would you not

A. If be looked at the smaller map it would be

easily interpreted.

10 But there is no directive on this map whatsoever

11 referring you to that smaller map on the left

12 hand corner is it

A. Yes sir if you will notice the area on the

14
right hand corner it shows you which direction

15 is north and on the small map that is drawn

16 it is the same way.

17 But it is true is it not Mr. Awe there is not

18 key or anything else on this map to show

you what is in that blanked out area that we

20 dont have for the large area that is not here

21 is it

22
A. No you would have to look at the small scale for

23 that.

24 BY THE COURT

25 is there any particular reason why any part of the

Pprnrtpr. Jackson. Miss.
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area was loft out of your map

BY THE WITNESS

Yes. Yes sir. was asked to prepare map

to include certain areas of Neshoba County and

in order to do this so it wouldnt be too large

there was certain areas that were not pertinent

so they were left out otherwise we would have

map extending about three feet.

BY THE COURT

Do you want to renew your objection Mr. Alford
10

BY MR. ALFORD
11

Yes sir.

12

BY THE COURT
13

All right its overruled.
14

BY MR. DOAR
15

would like to ask the Courts permission to
16

put the map that has been introduced first
17

would like this introduced.
18

BY THE COURT
19

All right it may be marked and entered into evide
20

Whereupon exhibit entered into evidence and
21

marked P-9
22

BY MR. DOAR
23

would ljkt to ask the Courts permission now
24

to let this map be put on the blackboard there
25



BY THE COURT

All right.

BY THE WITNESS

Your Honor may go over to the map

BY THE COURT

Yes.

BY MR. DOAR

Mr. Awe would you briefly explain the map to

the Court and Jury

10 A. Yes sir.

11 what the yellow part is and the lines and---

12 BY THE COURT

13 Governments exhibit 9.

14 BY MR. DOAR

15 Numbered exhibit 9.

16 A. The area you see in yellow represent the

17 City of Philadelphia. The black that you see

18 are the primary roads in that area the lines

19 you see in brown are secondary roads there

20 are some white pencil lines here that represent

21 other secondary roads. All of the roads that

22 are indicated on that map appear on the aerial

23 photograph and also appear on the official high

24 way map. This map is drawn to scale of six

25 inches equal five thousand feet or referring

-...- .---



to it in miles it would be six or 6.3 miles0

The arrow indicates the north direction straight

upon the map would be North to your right would

.4 be East to your left West.

What are the orange triangles

A. The orange markers you see there are the highway

signs and they indicate which highway for exampi

highway 21 highway highway 19. For example

highs4ay 19 is running east angling across the city

10 of Philadelphia being the highway toward

11 Meridian Mississippi0 might add that the

12 small blue area that you see to the right of the

13 map represents American Legion Lake.

14 And the grey area close to the top of the map is

15 what

16 A. The grey area at the top of the map represents

17 approximately 4.7 miles which is not included in

18 the map. This is the type of thing on engineering

19 drawings when you want to omit something---

20 BY ML PIGFORD

21 Now we object to something on drawings Your

22 Honor.

23 BY THE COURT

24 Well Ill overrule your objectionQ

25 BY MR0 DOAR

-.
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Can you point out the Longdale Road on eRhibit

A. Yes can.

Are you able to do it from the witness stand or

will it be necessary for you to step over there

A. To clearly indicate it it would be better for

me to step over there.

BY HE COURT

Well you are speaking for the record think you bad

just better articulate it for the record

10 BY THE WITNESS

11 A. All right sir the Longdale Road if you look

12 along Highway 16 will be East of Philadelphia

13 way over toward the very end of the map you see

14 the very last road and than its the next road to

15 the west of that. The Longdale Road.

16 BY THE COURT

17 Ill let the Marshal take that pointer over there

18 and trace your testimony for the benefit of the jury.

19 Now what road was it that you asked hint about Mr.

20 Doar

21 BY MR. DOAR

22 Longdale Road Your Honor.

23 BY THE COURT

24 All right.

25 BY THE WITNESS



A. Follow Highway 16 on your right now go further

to the East right there is the intersectiofl of

Highway 16 and Longdale Road and if you go

North that is Longdale Road up to the Sandtown

Road.

Q. Are you able to place marker on the map of

the Mt. Zion Church on the Longda1eRod

A. Yes that is approximately. 2.5 miles from the

intersection of Highway 16 and Longdale Road.

10 BY THE COURT

11 Is there someway you can mark the position of that

12 church on that map

13 BY THE WITNESS

14 have marker could place on it if might

15 leave the witness stand and go over to the map.

16 BY MR. DOAR

17 Your Honor would like to ask leave of the Court

18 for the witness to mak the location of the Mt. Zion

19 Church on the map.

20 BY THE COURT

21 You may put it on there and then get back on the

22 witness stand he can pick up your testimony on

23 the witness stand but he cant pick you up over there4

24 BY MR. DOAR

25 Your Honor please have several other locations
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would like to ask the witness to 1ace markers

onthemap

BY THE COURT

All right.

BY MR. DOAR

Q. Can you mEk the houses of Ernest Kirkland and

Wilbur Jones on Longdale Road

A. Yes Ican.

Would you mark the location of Bud Coles house

10 and Poplar Springs Church

11 A. Yes sir.

12 Q. Ad would you mark the location of the Bloomo

13 School and Pilgrims Store

14
A. Yes sir.

15
Q. And finally would you mark the location of Billy

16 Wayne Poseys store and Olen Burrages garage

17
A. Yes sir.

18 Thank you Your Honor.

19 BY THE COURT

20 All right gentlemen.

21 BY MR0 ALFORD

22 Your Honor please may approach the map and look

23 at it before ask any questions

24 BY THE COURT

25 Yes sir.

William A. Oavis Official Court Reporter Jackson Miss.
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BY MR. ALFORD

DIRECT EXAMINATION

Q. Mr. Awe notice on this map there some pencil

drawings of some roads leading off the different

black lines which are primary highways and ask

you how you drew those in there on that map

A. drew those in from the aerial photograph.

Are you telling this Court thai those mileages

are accurate there in distances and in scale

10
A. Yes sir that is fair and accurate representatlo

11
of that area.

12
Those roads that lead off from the different

13 black roads you tell this Court that they are

14 of scale on the representation as they are on the

15 ground

16 A. Yes sir traced them from the aerial photograph.

17 Q. What scale was your aerial photograph that you

18 used

19 A. The aerial photograph was in the same exact scale

20 as that map. Six inches equal five thousand feet.

21 And therefore believe heard you testify

22 before that six inches would be little over

23 mile

24 A. It wuuld be approximately six and quarter or

25 six arid third inches.

fl... n4A-..I r.... Inrkcnn Misc



Q. How much experience have you had drawing maps

of this kind

A. indicated that teach this as an instructor

and so many of the courses that teach is in

sketching crime scene areas and through the

course of many investigations have had ex

perience in these types drawings.

Did you ever have course in maping

A. Not specific course in maping.

10 Did you ever have course in surveying

ii
A. Not specific course in surveying again in

12 High School took courses in drafting.

13 That was in grade or high school

14 A. That was in high school.

15 These places that you have indicated on the map.

io Are they in the exact places as they are on the

17 ground

18 A. The places Ive indicated are in the exact place

19 as they are on the ground because you can see

20 them from the aerial photograph

21 Well would like sir if you would to look there

22 and ask you right beside the place that you

23 put Mr. Billy Poseys store do you or not have

24 the black pencil line road going in northwester

25 direction



7/
hA would have to look at the map to see what you

are referring to.

Your Honor please may he look at it

BY THE COURT

Yes sir.Couusel dont want both of you over there.

Ask him what you want to the Court Reporter can get

what you are saying there where you are standing.

BY THE WITNESS

A. lassume you are referring to this road right here

Q. Yes sir0

11
A. Yes that represents road.

12 Q. Now which direction to you not have that green

13 marker placed right beside that road

14 A. Yes but should explain that the marker would

15 not be placed to the exact scale that the building

16 wuuld be in that area.

17 Q. Then they are not to scale are they

18
A. These markers of the buildings that you see here

are not the scale that is correct.

20 Now as matter of fact Mr. Awe which side of

21
that road is that store

22 A. The building is to the right of that road.

23 BY THE COURT

24 What direction would that be

25 BY THE WITNESS

Williom A. Dovis Official Court Reporter Jackson Miss.
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A. That would be in more easterly direction.

Did you place it east of the road or west of the

road

A.

Q. Inher words. it is not accurately placed as to

where it is in relation to that road intersecting

Highway 15 16 and 21 is it Mr. Awe

A. The Marker is not placed. according to scale.

placed it on there where thought it would be

10 best to get the general idea of the general

11 location of that store.

12 Q. But its placed where it is right on top of that

13 road is it not

14
A. Well according to this intersection the middle

15 of this marker is directly above the location of

16 that store.

17
Q. If you would place that accurately you would have

18 to move it wouldnt you

19
A. Well Im not sure understand what you are

20
talking about.

21 Well its not in the location where you placed it

22 A. placed it in spot where thought everyone could

23 get general idea of the location of the store.

24 The marker could be placed right over the center

25 of that store which would accurately cover part



of the road but didnt think it would be best

to place it there.

Q. As matter of fact that does not even border

ortouch that pencil line road leads northwesterly

does it. That road leaves the highway some 150

yards west does it not Mr. Awe

A. That4s the general location of that store We

have aerial photographs-----

Bütthat___

10
BY THE COURT

11 Ldt him finish his answer. Counsel. Both of you

12 let each other finish before the other starts.

13
BY MR. ALFORD

14
Q. Im sorry. The road is east of thatore and

15
is east of that intersection of Highway 15 is it

16 not

17
A. To the best of my recollection it is yes.

18
Therefore thats not an accurate location is it

19 sir

20
A. Thtts an accurate general location. To put it

21 in there accurately it would be just dot and

22
you wouldnt be able to see it.

23
But you do know that road that leads north

24 doesnt even border on thttt store premises does

25 it

WHIiom A. Dovis. Officiol Court Reporter Jackson Miss... -.- -_-_...1



77
A. Ini not real sure about that.

Come around and take your seat please sir. Do

understand then that you made this map from an

aerial photograph is that right

A. Yes sir.

And not from the ground

A. made it from the ground also. Obeervations
did

Well/you you make observations from he road of

this store that Im asking you about.

A. took it from speedometer readings from the

11 center of Philadelphia to that store and also

12 took photographs of that area.

13
Q. But you didnt check the distance from there to

14 that pencil lined road that just asked you about

15 did you

16 A. didnt check the distance of that when put

17 that on there----

18 Do you know the name of that road

19 A. From the Aerial photograph

20 BY THE COURT

21 Counsel you are not letting him finish and hes

22 not letting you finish either.

23 BY MR. ALFORD

24 Do you know the name of that pencil road there

25 A. No sir.



7f

Is this representation of all of the roads in

that area

Yes sir every road in that area is indicated on

that map taken from the aerial photograph.

You have all the roads there

Yes sir same roads that are on the aerial photo.-

graph taken on that map and the same roads that

appear. on the official highway map also. appear

on that map yes sir.

10 Sir would you tell me if you have road on thac

11
map that leads from Williajnsville in southerly

12 direction which is known as old Highway 15 is thai

13
on this map

14 Theres highway 15 on the map.

15
But the old highway 15 is it on there

16 Im not sure where old Highway 15 is.

17 BY THE COURT

18 think the record should show that youve been

19
talking about goverrunents exhibit now what are

20
you talicing about

21 BY MR. ALFORD

22 hand you here governments exhibit and point

23 out to you an improved road in the vicinity of

24
Williamsvj.le Mississippi which is highway 15

25
arid as you sir if that highway is on your map
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